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ABSTRACT

A Dodo skeleton present in the Mineralogisch-Geologisch
Museum at Delft, The Netherlands, is described. This
specimen has hitherto not been described in the
ornithological literature.

RESUME

Un squelette de Dodo du Musée Minéralogique-
Géologique de Delft, Pays-Bas, est décrit. Cet exemplaire
n’était pas encore décrit dans la littérature ornithologique.

The Dodo Raphus cucullatus (Linnaeus, 1758)
from Mauritius was discovered in 1598 and
became extinct in the 17th century. Hundreds
of pages have been devoted to this peculiar
bird, but its systematic position and exact
appearance still remain uncertain.

Since no single intact specimen has survived
into post-Linnaean times, much of our current
knowledge is based on paintings and sketches
supposedly drawn from live birds. Several
Dodos are known to have been shipped as
curiosities to Europe, Java, India, and even
Japan, but few remains of these are still pre-
served in European museums. The best known
are the head and foot in the Oxford University
Museum, the head in the Zoological Museum
of Copenhagen, a foot in the British Museum
(Natural History), and some skeletal remains in
the Prague Museum of Natural History.

Our knowledge of the Dodo increased
significantly with the discovery of bones at the
Mare aux Songes on Mauritius (Clark, 1866;
Vinson, 1967). A number of skeletons has been
constructed, none of which, however, is that of
a single bird. Some 10-15 composite and partial
skeletons are present in museums and institu-

tions throughout the world. To our knowledge,
the skeletons in the Durban Museum of
Natural History and the Cambridge University
Museum of Zoology are the most complete
(Newton & Gadow, 1893; Chubb, 1919).

During our search for feather remains of the
Dodo (Brom & Prins, in press) our attention
was drawn to a rather complete skeleton pre-
served in the Mineralogisch-Geologisch
Museum of the University of Technology at
Delft, The Netherlands (figs. 1 & 2). Although
two authors (De Wit, 1940; Schuyf, 1970) have
reported the existence of this Dodo skeleton, it
has never been described in the ornithological
literature nor mentioned in reference works
(Lambrecht, 1933; Hachisuka, 1953; Liitt-
schwager, 1961). Furthermore, it was not listed
in the recently compiled world inventory of
avian skeletal material (Wood et al., 1982).

All that is known about the history of the
Delft skeleton is that the remains from which it
was reconstructed were excavated in Mauritius
by an anonymous Frenchman around 1900,
and that early in 1940 the skeleton was pur-
chased from Maison Deyrolle in Paris* by the
Curator of the Mineralogisch-Geologisch
Museum, Prof. Dr. J. H. F. Umbgrove.

The skeleton consists of a number of original
bones (listed in table I), augmented with casts

* During the preparation of this paper, Dr. R. Duguy
kindly informed us that the Muséum d’Histoire
Naturelle at la Rochelle, France, has a nearly complete
skeleton of the Dodo in its collection. Likewise, this
specimen was purchased from Maison Deyrolle (in
1934) and was mentioned in C. Jouanin, 1966: Oiseaux
éteints ou en voie d’extinction du Musée de la Rochelle.
Annls. Soc. Sci. Nat. Charente-Maritime, 4 (6): 1-7.
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Fig. 1. Lateral view of the Dodo skeleton in the Mineralogisch-Geologisch Museum at Delft.

from parts of the skeleton in the Mauritius
Institute at Port Louis (De Wit, 1940). From
the differences in size between the left and right
leg it is concluded that this skeleton has been
reconstructed from the remains of more than
one bird. The measurements presented in table
I are similar to those taken from other skeletons

(Strickland & Melville, 1848; Littschwager,
1961).

Since 1866 the osteology of the Dodo has
been subject of much research (cf. Owen &
Broderip, 1866), which has led to the opinion,
nowadays generally accepted, that it shares
most similarities with the pigeons. However,
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TasLE |

Original parts of the Dodo skeleton at Delft

Skull: dentale, angulare, and supra-angulare (total length
of lower jaw: left 178 mm, right 182 mm)

Vertebrae cervicales nrs. 3-13

Vertebrae thoracales nrs. 1-3

Vertebrae sacrales nrs. 1-15

Sternum (max. width 110 mm, max. length 166 mm,
width of crista sterni 10.4 mm)

Left scapula (98 mm, but damaged)

Ischium

Ilium (max. width 124 mm)

Pubis (badly damaged)

Left femur (min. length 136 mm, max. length 149 mm,
min. width 16.4 mm)

Right femur (min. length 133 mm, max. length 144 mm,
min. width 15.7 mm)

Left tibiotarsus (max. length 199 mm, min. width 14.0
mm)

Right tibiotarsus (max. length 208 mm, min. width 13.7
mm)

Left tarsometatarsus (max. length 124 mm)

Right tarsometatarsus (max. length 130 mm)
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neither the traditional osteological studies nor
our recent microscopic investigation of feather
remains (Brom & Prins, in press) have yielded
synapomorphies for the Dodo and the Colum-
bidae. Thus, alternative hypotheses on the
affinities of this intriguing bird (Littschwager,
1961) have not been falsified as yet. If the
phylogenetic relationships of this bird are ever
to be elucidated, we expect the answer to come
from osteological studies sufficiently com-
parative to support phylogenetic arguments. It
is therefore of great importance that all remains
of the Dodo that still exist be documented in the
ornithological literature.
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Fig. 2. Detail of the head and neck region of the Dodo skeleton in the Mineralogisch-Geologisch Museum at Delft.
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